
State of Nebraska

RFP 5943 Z1
Statewide Medical Director Consultants



Overview  The Department of Health and Human Services 
(DHHS) Division of Public Health, Office of 
Emergency Health Systems mission is to strengthen 
patient care and promote the well-being of the 
citizens of Nebraska and to those who work in and 
visit the State of Nebraska through cooperative 
partnerships, education, training, establishing 
systems of care and technical assistance. These 
activities help ensure that emergency medical 
services, providers, physician medical directors, and 
training agencies maintain compliance with the 
Emergency Medical Services Act (Neb. Rev. Stat. 
38-1201 – 38-1237) and the Rules and Regulations 
for EMS (172 NAC 11 - 172 NAC 13). The Office of 
Emergency Health Systems also ensures compliance 
to the Nebraska Statewide Trauma System Act 
(Neb. Rev. Stat. 71-8201 – 71-8253), the Rules and 
Regulations for the Statewide Trauma System (185 
NAC 1 – 185 NAC 11) and the Stroke System of Care 
Act (Neb. Rev. Stat. 71-4201 to 71-4209) by 
leveraging these activities. 

The purpose of this Request 
for Proposals is to retain the 
services of statewide 
medical/clinical director(s) 
for the following:

Emergency Medical 
Services Physician 
Medical Director

Trauma System 
Medical Director 

Emergency Medical 
Services for Children 
Medical Director



Contract term

 The term of the contract will be three (3) 

years commencing upon execution of 

the contract by the State and the Bidder 

(Parties). The contract includes the option 

to renew for two (2) additional two (2) 

year periods upon mutual agreement of 

the Parties. 



PROCUREMENT POINT OF CONTACT

 Procurement responsibilities related to this RFP reside with the 
State Purchasing Bureau.  The point of contact (POC) for the 
procurement is as follows:

 Name: Annette Walton, Buyer 

 Agency: State Purchasing Bureau 

 Address: 1526 K Street, Suite 130

 Lincoln, NE  68508

 Telephone: 402-471-6500

 E-Mail: as.materielpurchasing@nebraska.gov

mailto:as.materielpurchasing@nebraska.gov


SCHEDULE OF EVENTS

ACTIVITY DATE/TIME

1. Release RFP October 10, 2018
2. Last day to submit written questions to 

as.materielpurchasing@nebraska.gov

October 24, 2018

3. Optional Pre-Proposal Tele-Conference
Call in Number: 1-888-820-1398
Attendee code 8527952#
Time: 3:00 pm CT

October 25, 2018
3:00 pm CT

4. Last day to submit written questions after Pre-Proposal Conference October 26, 2018
5. State responds to written questions through RFP “Addendum” 

and/or “Amendment” to be posted to the Internet at: 
http://das.nebraska.gov/materiel/purchasing.html

October 31, 2018

6. Proposal opening
Location: State Purchasing Bureau

1526 K Street, Suite 130
Lincoln, NE 68508

November 14, 2018
2:00 PM

Central Time
7. Review for conformance to RFP requirements November 14, 2018

8. Evaluation period November 15, 2018
Through 

November 21, 2018

9. “Oral Interviews/Presentations and/or Demonstrations” (if required) TBD
10. Post “Intent to Award” to Internet at: 

http://das.nebraska.gov/materiel/purchasing.html
November 26, 2018

11. Contract finalization period November 26, 2018
Through

December 20, 2018
12. Contract award December 20, 2018
13. Contractor start date January 1, 2019

mailto:as.materielpurchasing@nebraska.gov
http://das.nebraska.gov/materiel/purchasing.html
http://das.nebraska.gov/materiel/purchasing.html


REMAINING IMPORTANT DATES

 LAST DAY TO SUBMIT QUESTIONS TO THE STATE: October 26, 2018

 STATE RESPONDS TO BIDDER QUESTIONS: October 31, 2018

 BID OPENING: November 14, 2018 @ 2:00 PM CT



Late proposals

 Proposals received after the time and date of the proposal opening will be 

considered late proposals.  Late proposals will be returned unopened, if 

requested by the bidder and at bidder's expense.  The State is not responsible 

for proposals that are late or lost regardless of cause or fault.



QUESTIONS? NEED ANSWERS?

 Questions regarding the meaning or interpretation of any RFP provision must 

be submitted in writing to the State Purchasing Bureau and clearly marked 

“RFP Number 5943 Z1; Office of Emergency Health Systems Statewide 

medical/clinical directors Questions”.  The POC is not obligated to respond 

to questions that are received late per the Schedule of Events.  

 Bidders should present, as questions, any assumptions upon which the 

bidder's proposal is or might be developed.  Proposals will be evaluated 

without consideration of any known or unknown assumptions of a bidder.  

The contract will not incorporate any known or unknown assumptions of a 

bidder.



Questions

we have 

received 

so far:



Question One

 Please be kind enough and clarify 
which forms are pertaining to the 
RFP . As clearly as I can determine 
the only forms I have identified are :

 Pages 32-33 under the Request for 
Proposal Form A.

 Attachment One (2 page 
document).

 There is not an application to complete in 
an RFP process. 

 Respondents to this RFP will need to 
complete and return:  

 1. Sections II – IV of the RFP boilerplate, 
initialed,

 2. Form A - Bidder Contact Sheet, 

 3. the “Request for Proposal for 
Contractual Services” Form, signed in ink, 
found on the last page of the RFP, 

 4. Attachment One: Completed 
Corporate Overview, 

 5. the Cost Proposal, and

 6. a copy of the physician’s Curriculum 
Vitae.



Question Two

 Is the RFP for an individual, or can 

the contract be with the 

individual’s employing 

organization?

 State Response:

The RFP is open to all qualified 

individuals and/or organizations.



Question Three

 What was the previous State 

Trauma Medical Director paid 

annually and for onsite 

designation visits? 

 State Response:

The previous State Trauma Medical 

Director was not paid in regards to 

performing statewide Trauma 

Medical Direction.  This is a new 

contract.   The prior Director was 

reimbursed travel expenses and was 

paid a daily rate of $500.00 for any 

onsite designation visits.



Question Four

 Can the application be submitted 

electronically? (Scanned and 

emailed) I. PROCUREMENT 

PROCEDURE Section J page 4. 

 State Response:

The RFP Response cannot be 

submitted electronically.  Responses 

must be submitted per I. 

Procurement Procedures Section J. 

Submission of Proposals either via 

mail or hand delivery.



Question Five

 Do the Physicians who perform 

Designation likewise have same 

due date and Application 

Process? COST 

PROPOSAL Trauma System 

Medical Director and Designation 

Reviews form (face sheet)

 State Response:

No, physicians who only do 

designation reviews will not be part 

of this RFP.  This RFP will only cover 

the State Trauma System Medical 

Director and the designations 

reviews that this Director is assigned. 



Question Six

 Do you need an NIGP Code for 

this RFP? If so what is it? Website 

“Vendor Information”

 State Response:

You do not need an NIGP code to 

submit a response to this RFP. You will 

need to know the correct NIGP 

code when you register on the 

state’s website. You can find the 

appropriate NIGP code by selecting 

the second tab on the vendor 

application and searching for the 

service, in this case, consulting.



Question Seven

 Is there a process to have 

someone review materials to 

make sure the application is 

complete prior to submission?

 State Response:

No. It is the bidder’s responsibility to 

ensure all required information and 

documents are submitted correctly.

Please also see question 1.



Questions?


